
 
 
Steve Atkinson MA(Oxon) MBA FloD FRSA 

Chief Executive 

 

 
Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR 

Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk 
 

Date: 28 August 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Members of the Licensing Committee 
 
 Mr K Nichols (Chairman) 

Mr MS Hulbert (Vice-Chairman) 
Mr PR Batty 
Mr SL Bray 
Mr MB Cartwright 
Mr DM Gould 
 

Mr MT Mullaney 
Mr LJP O'Shea 
Mrs J Richards 
Mrs H Smith 
Mrs S Sprason 
 

 
Copy to all other Members of the Council 
 
(other recipients for information) 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
There will be a meeting of the LICENSING COMMITTEE in the De Monfort Suite - Hub on 
WEDNESDAY, 4 SEPTEMBER 2013 at 6.00 pm and your attendance is required. 
 
The agenda for the meeting is set out overleaf. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
Helen Rishworth 
Communications & Democratic Accountability Officer 
 

Public Document Pack



 
Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR 

Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE -  4 SEPTEMBER 2013 
 
 

A G E N D A 

 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 2) 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 5 November 2012. 

3. ADDITIONAL URGENT BUSINESS BY REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES  

 To be advised of any additional items of business which the Chairman decides by reason 
of special circumstances shall be taken as matters of urgency at this meeting. 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive verbally from Members any disclosures which they are required to make in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct or in pursuance of Section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992. This is in addition to the need for such 
disclosure to be also given when the relevant matter is reached on the agenda. 

5. QUESTIONS  

 To hear any questions in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10. 

6. RE-ADOPTION OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) 
ACT 1976 (Pages 3 - 6) 

 Report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Community Direction) attached. 

7. ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES HAVE TO BE 
DEALT WITH AS MATTERS OF URGENCY  



 

-94 - 

HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

5 NOVEMBER 2012 AT 6.00 PM 
 
 
PRESENT:  
Mr DC Bill MBE (for Mr SL Bray), Mr MB Cartwright, Mrs L Hodgkins (for Mr K Nichols), 
Mrs J Richards, Mrs H Smith and Ms BM Witherford (for Mr MT Mullaney) 
 
Officers in attendance: Mark Brymer 
 

239 VICE-CHAIRMAN IN THE CHAIR  
 
In the absence of the Chairman, Councillor Hulbert as Vice-Chairman, took the Chair. 
 

240 APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies were submitted on behalf of Councillors Batty, Bray, Gould, Mullaney, Nichols, 
O’Shea and Sprason and the following substitutions authorised in accordance with 
Council Procedure Rule 4.3: 
 
Cllr Bill for Cllr Bray 
Cllr Hodgkins for Cllr Nichols 
Cllr Witherford for Cllr Mullaney. 
 

241 MINUTES  
 
On the motion of Cllr Cartwright, seconded by Cllr Hodgkins, it was 
 

RESOLVED – the minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2012 be 
approved and signed by the Chairman. 

 
242 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
No interests were declared. 
 

243 GAMBLING ACT 2005 - STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES  
 
In presenting this report it was stated that there had never been a contested hearing 
under the Gambling Act 2005, and also that the Gambling Commission worked very well 
and had helped to address any issues which may have arisen. It was also reported that 
there had been no objection to the policy under discussion. 
 
Councillors Richards and Smith arrived at 6.04pm. 
 
On the motion of Councillor Cartwright, seconded by Councillor Bill, it was 
 

RESOLVED – the Gambling Policy be endorsed for approval by Council. 
 
 

(The Meeting closed at 6.07 pm) 
 
 

 CHAIRMAN 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 4 SEPTEMBER 2013 
 
RE-ADOPTION OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS 
PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 
 
REPORT OF DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE (COMMUNITY 
DIRECTION) 
 
WARDS AFFECTED: ALL WARDS 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1.1 The report provides details of a proposal to readopt the provisions of Part II of 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 within the 
Borough of Hinckley & Bosworth. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1 The Licensing Committee is requested to recommend to the Executive that 
the Principal Licensing Officer be authorised to provide notice, in accordance 
with section 45 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
(the 1976 Act), of the Council’s intention to pass a resolution to adopt the 
provisions of Part II of the 1976 Act in relation to the Council’s administrative 
area. 
 

3. BACKGROUND TO THE REPORT 
  

3.1  Part II of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 contains 
provisions in relation to the licensing of private hire and hackney carriage 
vehicles, drivers and operators. The legislation contains provisions which 
allow local authorities to control the operation and use of private hire and 
hackney carriage vehicles and to protect the public by ensuring that vehicles 
are fit for use as licensed vehicles and drivers are ‘fit and proper’ to act as 
such if the provisions of Part II of the 1976 Act have been adopted by the 
Council 
 

3.2 Recent case law has seen decisions to prosecute for offences under Part II 
challenged successfully because a Council could not demonstrate, some 35 
years after the event, that it had given the appropriate notices in its adoption 
of Part II. The paperwork was simply not available. There is a general 
awareness that these challenges have taken place and in order to have a 
recent and robust position which would not be challengeable it is suggested 
that it would be beneficial to re-adopt the resolution for the purpose of clarity 
for the future and to ensure certainty in any enforcement action taken under 
the legislation. The function of adopting Part II of the 1976 Act is, by virtue of 
the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities)(England) Regulations 
2000 (as amended) a function of the Executive. 

 
3.3 It is therefore proposed that the Committee recommend to the Executive that 

authority be given for the provision of notice, in accordance with section 45 of 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 (the 1976 Act), of 
the Council’s intention to re-adopt the provisions of Part II of the 1976 Act. In 
accordance with statutory requirements, as outlined in section 5 below, notice 
will consist of the publication of a notice of intention in local newspapers for 

Agenda Item 6

Page 3



 

two consecutive weeks and service of the notice on the Town and Parish 
Councils within the Borough. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS [PE] 
 

4.1 There will be a cost implication relating to the publication of the statutory 
notices which will be met by existing budgets. 
 

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS [ MR] 
 

5.1 Section 45(2) of the 1976 Act provides that if the Town Police Clauses Act 
1847 is in force in the area of a district council, the council may resolve that 
the provisions Part II of the 1976 Act (other than section 45), are to apply to 
the relevant area; and if the council do so resolve those provisions shall come 
into force in the relevant area on the day specified in that behalf in the 
resolution (which must not be before the expiration of the period of one month 
beginning with the day on which the resolution is passed). “The relevant area” 
for these purposes means: (a) if the Act of 1847 is in force throughout the 
area of the council, that area; and (b) if the Act of 1847 is in force for part only 
of the area of the council that part of that area. The 1847 Act is in force 
throughout the entire area of Hinckley & Bosworth Borough Council. 

 
5.2 Section 45(3) provides that a council shall not pass a resolution adopting Part 

II of the 1976 Act unless it has (a) published a notice of intention to pass the 
resolution in a local newspaper circulating in the area for two consecutive 
weeks; and (b) served a copy of the notice, not later than the date on which it 
is first published in the newspaper, on each Parish or community council 
within the area to be affected. 
 
 

6. CORPORATE PLAN IMPLICATIONS [RP] 
 

6.1 Will help improve the control of hackney carriage and private hire trade within the 
Borough and thereby contribute towards the Council aims of creating a safe 
vibrant place to work and live. 
 
 

7. CONSULTATION [MB] 
 
7.1 Public Notices will be placed in a local newspaper for two consecutive weeks and all 

Town and Parish Councils will be served with a copy of the notice. 
 
 

8. RISK IMPLICATIONS 
 
It is the Council’s policy to proactively identify and manage significant risks which 
may prevent delivery of business objectives. 
 
It is not possible to eliminate or manage all risks all of the time and risks will remain 
which have not been identified. However, it is the officer’s opinion based on the 
information available, that the significant risks associated with this decision / project 
have been identified, assessed and that controls are in place to manage them 
effectively. 
 
The following significant risks associated with this report / decisions were identified 
from this assessment: 

Page 4



 

 

Management of significant Risks 

Risk Description Mitigating actions Owner 

 
Reputation, Legal, Regulatory 

It is suggested that re-
adoption of the legislation, 
in accordance with section 
45 of the 1976 Act, will 
ensure certainty in any 
enforcement action. 

Mark 
Brymer 

 
 
9. KNOWING YOUR COMMUNITY – EQUALITY AND RURAL IMPLICATIONS [RP] 
 

9.1 No implications as enforcement work in respect of Taxi Licensing are carried 
out consistently with reference to adopted policies and procedures across the 
whole Borough.  

 
10. CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 
 

10.1 Will help ensure Taxi Licensing standards within the Borough and thereby 
contribute towards the Council aims of Creating a vibrant place to work and live, 

supporting individuals and providing value for money and pro active services 
 
 By submitting this report, the report author has taken the following into account: 
 

- Community Safety implications 
- Environmental implications 
- ICT implications 
- Asset Management implications 
- Human Resources implications 
- Planning Implications 
- Voluntary Sector 

 
 
 
Background papers: Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
 
Contact Officer:  Mark Brymer ext 5645 
Executive Member:  Councillor David Gould 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Re-adoption of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

